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THE JOSEPH FEARSOK HOUSE b’
EAST AVON, NEW YORK '

gwner: Heilrs

bate of Erection: 1812

Arehitect:
Builder;

Present Condition: Excellent

¥umber of Stories: 2

Meterials of Ccustruction: Frame, Stone founde-
tion.

Qther Existing Records:

Additional Data:
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THE JOSEFH FEARSON HOUSE

fhe housa is of rough-hewn log frames with elsphoarded
exterior, stone foundetion wells, and brick chimneys, the
timbers from the farm of the picneer, the stone fram the
Tields snd cellar excavation, and the hrick from & kiln on
the banks of the Gsnessee River. Ixcept for new sills, put
under the houae in 1920, and the alteration of the east
chimpey into a wault, about 50 years ago, the strueture of
the main house is atil)l in ite original stete. There are
the ususl one-story extensione at the rear, consisting of
kitchen, servants®’ roum, wood ehed, carriege room, etec.,
which add greatly to its charm.

The interior has unierzone no major alterations, ex-
cept for the reconstruction of the esst chimney into a
vault on the first story. The veult is large enough for
soveral people to stand upright end was used for the safe
keeping of large sums of money hefore the sdvent of a bank
in the distriet. In the northeest room and in the cellar
helow, there still may be seen the evidence of & once large
kitchen hearth with its brick ovens.

The Farlor is supposed to have heen the publie¢ rcom,

as the house was used for the entertaimment of travelers, as
were most of the houses of the place snd period. The floor
has a painted pattern in bluck and white which hae nearly
heen ohliterasted. It ie now quite indistinet, in spite of
the attempts to preeerve it in pesst years. The excellent
condition of the house epeaks well for the workmanship of
the esrly huilders.

Joseph Fearson, his wife, Sarsh Watrous and four child-~
rer settled in the thriving community which is now East
Avon in 1798, They were both born in Connecticut. Their
tamilies moved westward after the Revolution and they were
merried nesr Alhany. In szesrch of a permanent home they
followed the trail made safe by Sullivan's military expe-
dition of 1787 when the Indians hoetile to the settlers
were graduelly confined to reservations. One of these was
Canawsugus on the west bank of the Genesee River, three
miles west of Joseph Pearson's home.

The road from Albany waa rough, in many places made of
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logs lald ecross muddy spots called corduroy roads,
and often ths journey took two weeks. ,Sarah Pearson,
carrying in her arms the baby six months eld, rode
horasback, while Joseph brought the other three child-
ren and the household furmiture in a wagon. Their
first night in the Genesse country was spent st the
famous hostalry west of Lima eslled "The Yellow Wasp."

After living on s farm sast of ths prssent village
of East Avon, which was latar sold to his nephew, John
Pesrson, Joseph purchased laxd from John Besach st the
four corners where the villege was looated, and moved
into & log house on the Albany-Buffalo highwey. His fam-
ily of four inereasing to nine he built the prssent home-
stead, which was built ip the year 18l2.

For several years Joseph Pearson kept a public house
here, 48 ons of the momentous migrations of history wae
taking place from New England to the Middle West there
were hoste of travelers needing wayside entsrtsinment as
there are todsy when 80 many ere touring by asuto., He
bscame widely known for his genisl hospitality.

Sarah Watrous Pearson, the mother of the family, died
suddenly in her kitchen at the age of thirty-sight end
Joseph Pesrson married her older sister, Clarsnda, widow
of Obadiah Jenks, who also had a family of ssversl children.

It was ths custom to marry young; so numerous homes
were formed in the surrcunding coumtry by young people
from the biz houss. Two sons, Frederick and Bradley, wsre
given farms anssar by; & third son went to Flint, Michigan
10 open & new countyry; & daughter, Maria, married a lawyer,
one of ths first in livingston County, Augustus Aristides
Bsnnatt; three of their sone becams physicisns; and their
daughters ware women of influence. Mary, or Polly FPesrson,
ae the femily called her, married Williem Jenks and their
son, Jemes, was wldely known ss an Avon doector.

Catherine, the oldest dsughter of Joseph and Sarah
Pearson, married Matthew Henna when sixtesn years old, but
was left g8 widow with three little girls at twenty, and
came back temporarily to her father's home, the new house
on the c¢orner in the year 1815. Later she married David
Kneeland with whom she removsd to LeRoy. Her children
held prominent places thsrs and in Wiscorsin several of them
becams foundsrs of Milwaukse.
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Another daughter of Joseph Peérson, nsgmed Wealthy,
warried Guerdon Cook and they became pioneers of Grand
Blang, Wisconsin. '

During his long life of seventy-four years Joseph
Fearson, grown to be a prospsrous land holder, aided
his community by supporting the church across the stirsst
from his house, of which his wife Clarenda was an active
member for many years. Their home was always open for
meetinge and conferences, and one room, known as "the
prophet's chambsr™, was aslways available for the enter-
taipment of visiting ministers.

After Clarenda’e death in 1834, Joseph married a
third time, the new bride being a teacher of the early
Avon echools, "Pedie"” Wheelook, who, with him enjoyed
life in the femily home for nine years, until the death
of Joseph Pearson, at the age of 76, in 1844, Pedie

. Wheelock Pearson after & few years removed to & smaller

house on & hill at the west end of the farm, opposite
the present State troopers heasdquarters.

It was at this time that Catherine, the oldest daughter
of Joseph Peargscon came from LeRoy to the old homestead with
bher husband, Enos Bachelder and two daughters. Together
they setablished their home hare, satisfying the other
heire to Joserh Pearson's estete. (ne daughter, Wealthy,
was 8 widow and dying young she left a little son David
Kendrick white, who was brought up in this home by her
younger sister Harriet (afterward Mrs. Solomon Taintor,)
apd later he enlisted as & drummer-boy in the Civil War
and died in cemp of Aisease at the age of fifteen.

¥r. apd Mre. Bachelder lived to celebrate their golden
wedding and the homestead was filled to overflowing with
their dse¢endants and relastives coming from prosperous
homsa in New York, Michigan, Wisconsin and California, to
make merry with them. On various other occasions there
were Family Te-unions from many states when the Pearson
Homsstead was erowded with guests coming back fo the fam-
1ly roof-tree,

Both Mr. snd Mrs. Bachelder, though quiet and unas-
suning, had firm couvictions of Justice and were coursgeous
and consistent in their conduct. ¥Wwhen harboring fugitive
slaves was legally & crime, thie house in East Avon corner
proved & shelter and protection to many & slave on the
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way from the south to Rochester and Cenada. It was
also the rendezvous of a secret society of Masons for
some ysars, until ths dieappearance of the leader
William Morgan, when Enos Bechelder resigned from the
masonie order. Aleo in the Bachelder home numsrous
young people outeide of ths family were given a start
in life until they wers able to support thsmeeives.

The youngeat daughfer of Catherine and Ence Bach-
slder, Harriet Bacheldsr, in 1856, married Dr. Sclomon
Taintor of Colchester, Comnecticut., Their wedding was
the occasion of another gala day in ths histery of the
0id home when a large number gethered as two other
Pearson cousins in the village were merried the same
day. The new family, Dr. and Mrs. Taintor, spent their
married life in the home, esring for the old couple and
continuing ths traditions of the Bachelders and Psar-
sons in thsir devotion to the churech snd the community,
beloved of all who knew them. Dr. Teintor planted the
elm, pine and cedar trses now beasutifully sheding the
lawn, rspeired the house and buiift nsw farm buildings. -
He alsgo built the vewlt in one of the largs chimnsye.

Edzar Guest saya:

=t taksé & heap of livin®
In & houas to make it homs.™

True was thie of the Taintor home. Seven children were
here born to Dr. and Mrs. Harriet Taintor, two of whom
still survive and for ysars have made it their eummer
home. The older daughter, Grace Pearson Teintor, mar-
ried Willism James Sly, their wedding September 1, 1896
in ths house and church bringing another day of re-

union of relatives from near and afar and filling the
house with happy guests. Dr. and Mre. Willism J. 8ly,
affer living in a number of different statss, eaet and
west, as Dr. Sly puresued his chossn profezaion of tasch-
ing, prseching and writing, have returned to ths an-
¢sstral homeetead. Hs is the author of a number of popu~
lar books, "World Storiee Retold®™ and othsrs. Mre. Grace
Sly has been active in so¢ial life, member of numsrous
women's elube and Regent of the Yemhill Chapter of D.A.R.
in Oregon. The youngest daughtsr of Dr. and Mrs. Taintor,
Sarah Augusta Taintor, whoss life has been spent in study,
travel, teaching and authorehip and who for seversl years
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has resided in New York City teaching in the Theodore
. Roosevelt High School and in Columbia University, makes
‘the ancestral home her summer vacation delight. Fol-
lowing the traditions of her parente and grand-parente
she has been indefatigable in repairinog and improving
the house inside and cut.

Giving careful study to colonial architecture and
1lnterior decoration, she has preserved the ancient features
of the house, sllowing nothing of value and beauty to be
destroyed. 014 furniture, leng relegated to the attic has
been reconditioned and restored %o the rooms. Gardens
have been planned on the lawns, covering one acre, sll
that is left of the original farm which extended down the
north road for a mile. New trees and shrubs have added
beauty to it. Miss Teintor, collsborating with Miss Mun-
roe, is the amthor of the "Secretary's Heund Book™ and the
"Book of Modern Letters.”

On the first of August 1935, the house wes opened to
the public for inspection and the spacious porch in the
rear and the grounds beceme the ecene of an historical
pageant, presenting vivid pictures in color and costume
of the paet of the East Avon community. -Few occasions
in the life of East Avon have brought together more people
from near and far then this pageant given 1in this old colo-
nial Pearson Homestead for the benefit of the new church
soelal hall serose the way.

By Mrs. Williem J. Sly.
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